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Name: HAREWOOD HOUSE
District: Leeds (Metropolitan Authority)
Parish: Alwoodley

District: L eeds (Metropolitan Authority)
Parish: Harewood

label.localisation:  Latitude: 53.871413
Longitude: -1.5297499
National Grid Reference: SE 31018 41792
Map: Download afull scale map (PDF)

label.overview:  Heritage Category: Park and Garden
Grade: |
List Entry Number: 1001218
Datefirst listed: 01-Dec-1984

Details

Gardens and pleasure grounds of the C18 with elements designed by Richard Woods and Thomas White and aterraced garden
of 1844-51designed by Charles Barry with a planting scheme possibly by William Andrews Nesfield. Parkland laid out to
designs by Lancelot Brown during the period 1772-80 with alterations and additions of ¢ 1800, some of which were executed
to proposals by Humphry Repton.

HISTORIC DEVELOPMENT

The estate was owned by Robert de Romelli in the C11, and passed to various families thereafter by marriage. In 1365 it was
sold to Sir William Aldburgh, and subsequently passed to the Wentworth family. After several changes of ownership it was
bought by Henry Lascellesin 1738. The estate continued in the Lascelles family, created earls of Harewood in the C18, and
remainsin private ownership (1998).

DESCRIPTION

LOCATION, AREA, BOUNDARIES, LANDFORM, SETTING Harewood House lies immediately west of the village of
Harewood in arural and agricultural area. The ¢ 350ha siteis on rolling land which slopes down from the north-east to a point
near the centre of the site and the lake, and then rises to the south. The north and north-east boundaries are formed by the
AB59, the north-west boundary is formed by Weardly Lane, and the remaining boundaries by fences dividing the site from
agricultural land.

ENTRANCES AND APPROACHES The principal entrance is from Harewood village where there is a gateway with lodges
and linking walls (based on adesign by Humphry Repton 1802-4, all listed grade I1) from which adrive leads west to the north
front of the House. This entrance was constructed following the realignment of the Otley to Tadcaster Turnpike in 1796-1800
when it wasre-routed to the north side of Harewood Castle. North of thisentrance thereis a separate entrance leading to Church
Lane which runswestwards to All Saints church. Thiswasthe former line of the turnpike and it continues as Sandy Gate, which
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connects with a system of drives running to the High and Low Lodges, which are on the west side of the site in the adjacent
hamlets of High and Low Weardley.

Lofthouse Lodge (gate piers, gates and railings late C18, listed grade I1), on the A659 south of the village, leads to a drive
which runs west to New Bridge (1837, listed grade 11) and turns to run northwards through woodland, crossing Rough Bridge
(early C19, listed grade 1), giving views of the House and |ake before joining the main entrance drive north-east of the House.
This approach was under construction in 1774 and was probably laid out by Lancelot Brown (1716-83). Humphry Repton
(1752-1818) proposed some areas of new planting alongsideit, shown as additions to a map of 1796, ¢ 1800. Alwoodley Lodge
(mid-late C18, with a pair of lodges, gates and flanking walls listed grade |1 together) lies on the south side of the site and a
drive runs north from it through High Wood to join with a network of other drives and tracks through the site.

PRINCIPAL BUILDING Harewood House (listed grade 1) was designed by John Carr (1723-1807) for Edwin Lascelles in
1759. Robert Adam (1728-92) designed much of the interior and the building was altered by Charles Barry (1795-1860) in
1843. The House has some of the finest interiorsin the region with work by Joseph Rose, Angelica Kaufmann, Antonio Zucchi
and Biagio Rebecca. It stands on a platform overlooking falling land to the south, and dlightly rising land to the north, at the
far end of a spur of land which extends west from the village. This position was chosen to take advantage of the qualities of
aspect and prospect afforded by the elevated site. Some 200m south-west of the House the stable complex (John Carr 1755-8,
listed grade 1) isin use as a restaurant, shops and related visitor facilities (1998).

The principal house of the estate in the mid C18 was called Gawthorp Hall, which was a medieval manor house altered in the
C17 which lay at the bottom of the valley south of the present House and was demolished between 1770 and 1773.

Harewood Castle (listed grade I) liesin the north-east corner of the site ¢ 1.4km north-east of the House. It is of mid C14 date
and William Aldburgh received alicenceto crenellate in 1366. Despite its semi-ruinous condition it is considered to be the best
example of a C14 fortified tower housein Y orkshire. The Castle, with its twin towers rising above the trees which surround it,
forms an incident in the landscape and was painted by JM W Turner in 1797.

All Saints church (listed grade 1) lies ¢ 400m north-east of the House on the west side of a sub-rectangular churchyard. The
building is largely C15 and the west front was altered in 1793. It was restored 1862-3 by Sir G G Scott and is notable for a
fine collection of medieval alabaster monuments.

GARDENS AND PLEASURE GROUNDS On the south side of the House there is a substantial Italianate terraced garden
(listed grade I1*) of 1844-51 designed by Charles Barry. A double stone staircase leads down from the House to a terrace with
a gravelled walkway and stone retaining walls with a balustraded parapet. The terrace terminates on the east and west sides
with stone benches. On each side of the staircase thereis a pair of C18 stone sphinxes which Barry moved from the north front.
Sets of steps lead down to the lower terrace which islaid out with a central fountain and raised flower beds with curved stone
coping. Theterrace is supported by a stone retaining wall which is balustraded and has a series of semicircular projections. At
each of the east and west ends stone steps descend to agrassed terrace called Archers Walk with aborder planted in thelate C20
whichisdivided from the park by apale. A plan by Barry of 1844/5 showsthat his design was carried out with some alterations,
principally in the shape of some of the beds and fountains. The flights of steps at each end of the lower terrace are not shown
on the plan. Some sources (quoted in Piebenga 1992) attribute the original planting design to W A Nesfield (1793-1881).
Theterrace affordsimpressive long-distance views over the park and lake to the south and it replaced lawns shown on the 1796
map which swept up to the south front of the House.

To the south-west of the House the land slopes down to the south and there are pleasure grounds planted with trees and shrubs
with paths running through them south-westwards towards the lake. Paths lead along the north side of the lake and ¢ 500m
south-west of the House the water runs from the western tip of the lake's northern arm as a cascade, beside which there is an
unusual combined icehouse and dovecote (c 1800, listed grade I1).

Paths continue around the northern arm of the lake and lead to an area known as the Rose Garden (listed grade 11) which is
on the east side of the kitchen garden. A rectangular area is enclosed by raised walls and divided into two terraces with low
walls. Flagged pavements separate beds planted with roses, and steps |ead up to the upper (northern) terrace which has pergolas
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with miniature Tuscan columns. At the centre of the terrace there is an arbour with a Tuscan porch, within which is a bas relief
classical carving. A lean-to is positioned against the north side of the arbour wall.

Wooded pleasure grounds lie in the north-east side of the site including an area to the west of All Saints church called The
Grove. Some 300m north-west of the church the Rotunda (1785, listed grade 1) is afolly from which there are views across
Wharfedale and to Harewood Castle, though this is partly obscured by trees. This area was probably first incorporated into
the pleasure grounds following the re-routing of the road between the church and village to the north in 1773-4. Paths from
the Rotunda lead through the woodland and join with drives running westwards and southwards to the House. Work on the
northern pleasure grounds seems to have started under Richard Woods (1716-93) who was paid more than £56 for 'Setting
out Grounds' in 1764, the work being supervised by Mr Sparrow (Hay 1993). Thomas White (1736-1811) was engaged soon
afterwards and payments of £57 15sin 1766 and £30 9sin 1768 were probably for a continuation of the works started by Woods
in the northern pleasure grounds.

A rustic bridge (listed grade 1) ¢ 900m north-east of the House leads beneath Church Lane and gives access to paths leading
north-east to the Castle ruins. It was constructed following the re-routing of the turnpike, 1796-1800, which allowed the Castle
and its immediate environs to be fully incorporated into the pleasure grounds. An account written in 1816 states 'the castle is
now taken into the domain, and awidely extended view of Wharfedale may, within the compass of a short walk, be contrasted
with the soft and beautiful home scene which opens round the house' (T D Whitaker, quoted in Sheeran 1990).

PARK Parkland extends on each side of the House which lies close to the centre of the site. To the north The Grove and Castle
Plantation are divided from open pasture by sunk fences, and there are views of open parkland with woodland beyond it from
the north front of the House. The northernmost part of the park is called North Park and was imparked ¢ 1800 following the re-
routing of the turnpike road. Wall Side plantation, which shelters the northern part of the eastern boundary, is within an area
of former fields which waslaid out on the advice of Humphry Repton (1752-1818), ¢ 1800.

Thelake, whichisof anirregular Y shape with two arms projecting to the west, lies ¢ 400m south of the House from which it
is separated by open pasture called Sun Sides. A lake is shown on acounty map of 1771, though this may be based on Brown's
proposals rather than what existed at the time, which was probably only anarrow fishpond associated with Gawthorp Hall. The
lake was created to Brown's design in a campaign of work which started in 1775 and took three years to complete. J C Loudon
later advised upon the outline of the lake, and illustrations of 1806 show that he proposed extensive alteration of the shoresto
give abroken, rocky outline. Comparison of the 1796 and 1851 maps suggests that any works which took place were restricted
to fairly minor irregularities introduced along the north-east shore.

The southern part of the park has extensive areas of woodland around open land called Lodge Hills and Grey Stone Pasture.
The Grey Stone (listed grade I1), a large gritstone boulder with carvings upon it which are thought to date from ¢ 2000 BC,
lies ¢ 1.6km south of the House. Eccup Beck runs across the southern half of the site, through woodland, and continues north
to feed the lake.

The park was laid out for Edwin Lascelles during the 1760s and 1770s, and in 1767 a visitor commented on the valley
'surrounded by swamps and marshes, which are designed to be laid under water' (Rev Ismay quoted in Sheeran 1990). Proposals
by Lancelot Brown in 1758 seem to have been unexecuted or held in abeyance. In 1772 Brown returned to Harewood. The
ground to the north of the House was lowered, the lake constructed and plantations were altered and extended. Brown was at
work at Harewood until 1780, and his bill amounted to £6800 (P Goodchild pers comm).

KITCHEN GARDEN The kitchen garden (walls C18, listed grade Il) lies ¢ 400m south-west of the House between the two
armsof thelake. Thereisaseries of walled compartments and arange of glasshouses against the north wall of the southernmost
enclosure. This has a seating al cove built into the outer southern wall from which there are views across the lake.
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Lega

This garden or other land is registered under the Historic Buildings and Ancient Monuments Act 1953 within the Register of
Historic Parks and Gardens by Historic England for its special historic interest.
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